
 
 
A Meeting of an INDIVIDUAL EXECUTIVE MEMBER 
DECISION will be held in the Council Chamber - Civic 
Offices, Shute End, Wokingham RG40 1BN on 
WEDNESDAY 9 FEBRUARY 2022 AT 4.00 PM 
 

 
Susan Parsonage 
Chief Executive 
Published on 1 February 2022 
 
 
Note: Although non-Committee Members and members of 
the public are entitled to attend the meeting in person, 
space is very limited due to the ongoing Coronavirus 
pandemic. You can however participate in this meeting 
virtually, in line with the Council’s Constitution. If you wish to 
participate either in person or virtually via Microsoft Teams, 
please contact Democratic Services. The meeting can also 
be watched live using the following link: 
https://youtu.be/8_Kd8jK5TB0  
 
Please note that other people may film, record, tweet or blog 
from this meeting.  The use of these images or recordings is 
not under the Council’s control.

Public Document Pack

https://youtu.be/8_Kd8jK5TB0


 

 

 
 

Our Vision 
 

A great place to live, learn, work and grow and a great place to do business 
 

 
Enriching Lives 

 Champion outstanding education and enable our children and young people to achieve their full 
potential, regardless of their background.  

 Support our residents to lead happy, healthy lives and provide access to good leisure facilities to 
complement an active lifestyle.  

 Engage and involve our communities through arts and culture and create a sense of identity which 
people feel part of.  

 Support growth in our local economy and help to build business. 

Safe, Strong, Communities 

 Protect and safeguard our children, young and vulnerable people. 

 Offer quality care and support, at the right time, to prevent the need for long term care.  

 Nurture communities and help them to thrive. 

 Ensure our borough and communities remain safe for all.  

A Clean and Green Borough 

 Do all we can to become carbon neutral and sustainable for the future.  

 Protect our borough, keep it clean and enhance our green areas. 

 Reduce our waste, improve biodiversity and increase recycling. 

 Connect our parks and open spaces with green cycleways.  

Right Homes, Right Places 

 Offer quality, affordable, sustainable homes fit for the future.  

 Build our fair share of housing with the right infrastructure to support and enable our borough to 
grow.  

 Protect our unique places and preserve our natural environment.  

 Help with your housing needs and support people to live independently in their own homes.  

Keeping the Borough Moving 

 Maintain and improve our roads, footpaths and cycleways.  

 Tackle traffic congestion, minimise delays and disruptions.  

 Enable safe and sustainable travel around the borough with good transport infrastructure. 

 Promote healthy alternative travel options and support our partners to offer affordable, accessible 
public transport with good network links.  

Changing the Way We Work for You 

 Be relentlessly customer focussed. 

 Work with our partners to provide efficient, effective, joined up services which are focussed around 
you.  

 Communicate better with you, owning issues, updating on progress and responding appropriately 
as well as promoting what is happening in our Borough.  

 Drive innovative digital ways of working that will connect our communities, businesses and 
customers to our services in a way that suits their needs.  

 



 

 

For consideration by 
 
Wayne Smith, Executive Member for Planning and Enforcement 
 
Officers Present 
Rhian Hayes, Interim Assistant Director Housing and Place 
Francesca Rowson, Policy Officer (Housing and Projects) 
Callum Wernham, Democratic & Electoral Services Specialist 
 
 

IMD NO. WARD SUBJECT 

 
 

CONTACT OFFICER 
Callum Wernham Democratic & Electoral Services Specialist 
  
Email callum.wernham@wokingham.gov.uk 
Postal Address Civic Offices, Shute End, Wokingham, RG40 1BN 



This page is intentionally left blank



INDIVIDUAL EXECUTIVE MEMBER DECISION 
REFERENCE IMD: 2022/01 

 
TITLE Decision on publication of an interim First Homes 

Position Statement 
  
DECISION TO BE MADE BY Executive Member for Planning and Enforcement 

- Wayne Smith 
  
DATE, 
MEETING ROOM and TIME 

9 February 2022 
Council Chamber at 4pm 

  
WARD None Specific; 
  
DIRECTOR / KEY OFFICER Director, Place and Growth - Steve Moore 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT (Inc Strategic Outcomes) 
 
To obtain IMD approval to publish a First Homes Interim Policy Statement on the 
Wokingham Borough Council website, with the purpose of outlining the Council’s 
position on First Homes. This position of the Council on First Homes is in line with the 
Government guidance for local authorities and explains the implications for Wokingham 
Borough. It also introduces local connection and key worker criteria for Wokingham 
Borough, in line with government recommendations. 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
That the Executive Member for Planning and Enforcement agrees that the draft First 
Homes Interim Policy Statement is suitable to be displayed on the Wokingham Borough 
Council website as a guide to the implications of First Homes in Wokingham and the 
Council’s position on this new policy, whilst introducing local eligibility criteria for buyers 
of First Homes in line with Government guidance. 
 
 

SUMMARY OF REPORT 
 
The background section of this report outlines the origin of the new national First Homes 
policy in the Government’s Written Ministerial Statement and Planning Practice Guide, 
both published on 24th May 2021. It explains the implications for affordable housing 
contributions and looks into the transition arrangements in terms of timescales, and 
Government guidance for the implementation of First Homes in local areas. The 
business case goes on to explain the need for publishing an interim First Homes 
statement and explains the reasoning behind the inclusion of the different sections 
within this statement. 
 
 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item IMD1



Background 
 
On 24th May 2021, the Government published a Written Ministerial Statement and a 
Planning Practice Guide setting out details relating to the Government’s new First 
Homes policy. The writing and proposed publication of this First Homes interim position 
statement is in response to the Government’s new policy.  
 
As an overview, the implication of the Government’s new First Homes policy is that it 
requires that 25% of affordable housing through S106 contributions is delivered in the 
form of First Homes. First Homes are homes for first-time buyers which are discounted 
at least 30% from the market value price, for which there are nationally set criteria in 
terms of eligibility of potential buyers. Local authorities can also set additional eligibility 
criteria for their local area, which will be explored below. There are a small number of 
exemptions from the First Homes requirement which are explored in the last section of 
the Wokingham Borough Council First Homes interim position statement, in line with a 
consultation response issued by the Government on 1st April 2021. 
 
As found in the PPG, (Paragraph: 020 Reference ID: 70-020-20210524), the related 
changes to Planning Policy came into effect on 28th June 2021 and any planning 
applications approved after 28th December 2021 need to take First Homes into 
consideration. There is an exception in the case where applications for full or outline 
planning permission have undergone significant pre-application engagement and are 
determined before 28th March 2022 – the new policy does not apply in such cases.  
 
The transition period for plan making has now passed, meaning that any local plans and 
neighbourhood plans which were not submitted for examination by 28th December must 
now take account of the new First Homes requirements (PPG Paragraph: 018 
Reference ID: 70-018-20210524). More information on timescales and transitional 
arrangements can be found in paragraphs 018 to 021 of the PPG.  

As part of the PPG guidance, the Government encourages local planning authorities to 
both ensure that First Homes work well in their local area by introducing local 
requirements/a higher minimum discount, and to make the development requirements 
for First Homes clear for their area (Paragraph: 009 Reference ID: 70-009-20210524). 
One of the ways referred to of doing this is by publishing an interim policy statement.  

Business Case (including Analysis of Issues) 
 
Given this background, the reason this First Homes interim policy statement is proposed 
for publication is both to make the implications of First Homes in Wokingham Borough 
clear, as recommended by the Government, and to introduce local eligibility 
requirements which are also suggested in the PPG guidance. 
 
Having explained the underlying need to publish an interim First Homes statement, this 
business case will now explore the content of the statement and reasons behind the 
eligibility requirements it introduces. All of the proposed content is in line with the 
published Government guidelines and recommendations. 
 
The statement begins by introducing the background to the First Homes Policy and 
pointing out the existing policy basis for affordable housing provision in Wokingham 
Borough, which remains unchanged but will now take First Homes into account. It then 
details the timescales for the new policy (explored in the ‘Background’ section above) 

Page 6



and what constitutes a First Home, before stating that there are several national 
eligibility criteria for First Home buyers. All of this is taken directly from the PPG 
guidance.  
 
 
Local eligibility requirements 

As touched on in the ‘Background’ section, the PPG guidance details the local eligibility 
criteria that local planning authorities can apply in addition to national criteria 
(Paragraph: 008 Reference ID: 70-008-20210524). These may involve lower income 
caps, a local connection test or criteria based on employment status.  

Accordingly, Wokingham Borough Council proposes to introduce key worker and local 
connection requirements in Wokingham Borough, as outlined in the interim statement. 
For First Homes, a key worker for Wokingham Borough Council is someone who 
provides an essential service to the local economy but must earn under the national 
First Homes eligibility income threshold (as detailed in the interim statement from the 
PPG), and the local connection criteria is someone who lives or works in Wokingham 
Borough. These local eligibility criteria will enable First Homes to operate in the borough 
in such a way that workers providing essential services will be helped to purchase 
homes in the area in which they work and/or live. This prioritisation of key workers is 
encouraged by the Government, and the local connection criteria detailed in the 
statement is the same as the stipulation in Wokingham Borough Council S106 
nominations agreements for other affordable housing tenures. 

In relation to the possibility of introducing a higher local percentage discount at 40% or 
50% at the discretion of local authorities (PPG Paragraph: 004 Reference ID: 70-004-
20210524), the Council is looking into commissioning an evidence base to investigate 
whether a higher discount in this way can be justified. If so, a further First Homes 
position statement will go through Executive at a later date, proposing a higher % 
discount to this effect. Correspondingly, the current proposed interim statement notes 
this later addition of a higher discount as a possibility going forwards. 
 
 
Developer contributions and worked example 
 
Another area which the proposed interim statement explores is that of developer 
contributions and the implications of the new policy on affordable housing contributions 
in Wokingham Borough. The section entitled “Developer contributions” first explores the 
PPG guidance as to a minimum of 25% of all affordable housing units secured through 
S106 needing to be First Homes. It then states the existing 70:30 Social Rent: Shared 
Ownership split in Wokingham, as stated in the Affordable Housing Viability Study. 
 
The worked example which follows, therefore, is necessary to demonstrate the 
implication of the Government’s policy on the affordable tenure mix for sites in 
Wokingham Borough which trigger S106 contributions. The PPG guide sets out exactly 
how this tenure mix should be worked out, which is reflected in the example given 
(Paragraph: 015 Reference ID: 70-015-20210524).  
 
 
 
 

Page 7



Exemptions from the First Homes requirement 
 
The reason for inclusion of this final section is to explain that the new First Homes policy 
will not apply to all sites – the Government has previously indicated their intention to 
exempt certain sites from the First Homes requirement, hence an explanation in the 
Council’s policy statement to this effect. The proposed statement explains that the 
Government’s intention is stated as to exempt from First Homes the same sites as are 
currently exempt from the 10% affordable home ownership requirement (in paragraph 
64 of the NPPF). This intention was indicated by the Government in a publication prior 
to the 24th May 2021 publications on First Homes, this being the Government’s 
consultation response issued on 1st April.  
 
As a result, Wokingham Borough Council’s intention is stated as to exempt these sites 
from First Homes, but that this is subject to further guidance from central Government. 
The reason for inclusion of this section in the statement is that it is very relevant to 
developers and housing associations operating in the area, as they need to understand 
the extent to which First Homes are required to be implemented across all development 
sites, as this greatly impacts on them. Therefore, the latest Government position on this 
question is provided in this proposed interim statement for publication by the Council. 
 
 
 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS OF THE RECOMMENDATION 
The Council faces severe funding pressures, particularly in the face of the COVID-19 
crisis.  It is therefore imperative that Council resources are focused on the 
vulnerable and on its highest priorities. 
 

 How much will it 
Cost/ (Save) 

Is there sufficient 
funding – if not 
quantify the Shortfall  

Revenue or 
Capital? 

Current Financial 
Year (Year 1) 

N/A N/A  

Next Financial Year 
(Year 2) 

N/A N/A  

Following Financial 
Year (Year 3) 

N/A N/A  

 

Other financial information relevant to the Recommendation/Decision 

The purpose of this proposed interim statement is to explain the implications of 
government policy on Wokingham Borough and to introduce local eligibility criteria 
which will work best in the borough area, in accordance with published guidance. 
Therefore, this decision carries no financial implications itself – it seeks to set out and 
explain an obligatory change to policy. There will be financial implications at 
implementation stage as it will be down to the LA to administer and monitor, however for 
the purposes of the interim statement there are none. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



Cross-Council Implications  

The policy for which this decision seeks to publish guidance will primarily have an 
impact on Place Commissioning, who are overseeing the implementation of the new 
rules which have come into place, and Planning Policy, due to this new policy having 
implications for local and neighbourhood plans going forwards. It will require a further 
degree of liaison between developers and the Council going forwards, including the fact 
that prospective owners of new First Homes will need to submit an application form to 
the Council in order to proceed. However, as mentioned before, this impact on the 
Council is the result of the required implementation of First Homes in all local planning 
authorities – the IMD introduces relevant guidance for the national policy change, whilst 
adding local eligibility criteria recommended by the Government. 
 

 

Public Sector Equality Duty 

Similar to the financial implications reasoning above, a full equalities assessment is not 
required for this decision. This is because although a change to policy is taking place, 
this change is required of all local planning authorities and this IMD seeks only to publish 
guidance as to explain this change. MHCLG (now DLUHC) published an Equality Impact 
Assessment in September 2020 on the overall First Homes Scheme. The decision to 
introduce local eligibility criteria for First Homes in Wokingham is directly in line with 
Government recommendations and should not disproportionately impact any group with 
protected characteristics, as explored in the Initial Impact Assessment document. Due 
regard has been taken to ensure that the statement proposed for publication on the 
Wokingham Borough Council website is accessible for readers with disabilities.  
 

 

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATION RESPONSES 

Director – Resources and Assets No comment received. 

Monitoring Officer No specific comments. 

Leader of the Council No comment received. 

 

List of Background Papers 

First Homes Interim Policy Statement – Enclosure 1 
Initial Equality Impact Assessment – Enclosure 2 
 

 

Contact  Francesca Rowson Service  Place Commissioning 

Telephone No  0118 974 6000 Email  
francesca.rowson@wokingham.gov.uk 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
First Homes Interim Policy Statement 
 

Wokingham Borough Council 
 

January 2022 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Wokingham Borough Council Emblem 

Page 11



 

First Homes Interim Policy Statement  

January 2022 

 
This statement serves as an Interim Policy Statement for Wokingham Borough Council on 

the new First Homes policy. It summarises some key details of the policy change and seeks 

to outline the position of and effect on Wokingham Borough Council of the change. The 

Council will continue to examine the implications of First Homes and respond accordingly in 

its approach going forwards. 

Wokingham Borough Council has an existing policy basis for affordable housing provision in 

the Wokingham Borough area, set out in the adopted Core Strategy (2010), in Policy CP5 

and the Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document. Affordable housing in the 

borough area will continue to be delivered in accordance with existing WBC policy, but will 

take into account the new First Homes policy in line with the timescales set out below. 

 

First Homes Policy 

On 24th May 2021, the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), 

now the Department for Levelling Up, Housing and Communities (DLUHC) published 

guidance relating to the new First Homes policy for first-time buyers in England. This 

Planning Practice Guide (PPG) can be found on the GOV.UK website (Guidance: First 

Homes). Paragraphs 003 and 010 of the PPG were subsequently updated on 23rd December 

2021 to add links to the template planning obligations legal agreement. 

This guidance accompanies a Written Ministerial Statement (Affordable Homes Update: 

Statement made on 24th May 2021).  

The changes to Planning Policy relating to First Homes came into effect on 28th June 2021 

and any planning applications approved after 28th December 2021 need to take First Homes 

into consideration – see next section for more detail on timescales. 

 

Timescales 

For areas that do not meet the criteria for transitional arrangements (PPG Paragraphs 18 – 

19), new development plans, including local plans and neighbourhood plans, should take 

account of the new First Homes requirements from 28th June 2021 (PPG Paragraph: 018 

Reference ID: 70-018-20210524). 

There is a transition period for decision making regarding sites seeking planning permission. 

This entails that the new First Homes policy requirement does not apply for sites with full or 

Page 12

file:///C:/Users/FraRow/Downloads/Final%20adopted%20Core%20Strategy%20inc.%20cover%20(1).pdf
file:///C:/Users/FraRow/Downloads/Adopted%20Affordable%20Housing%20SPD%20July%202013.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/first-homes
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/first-homes
https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-statements/detail/2021-05-24/hlws48
https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-statements/detail/2021-05-24/hlws48


 

outline planning permissions already in place or determined (or where a right to appeal 

against non-determination has arisen) before 28th December 2021.  

Likewise, the new policy does not apply for applications for full or outline planning 

permission where there has been significant pre-application engagement which are 

determined before 28th March 2022.  

If an applicant wishes to amend a planning application to include First Homes which is 

already submitted and likely to be granted before these dates, the local planning authority 

should be flexible in accepting First Homes as an alternative type of tenure (Paragraph: 020 

Reference ID: 70-020-20210524). 

 

What is a First Home? 

As stated in the Planning Practice Guidance (PPG), First Homes are a specific kind of 

discounted market sale housing and should be considered to meet the definition of 

‘affordable housing’ for planning purposes. Specifically, First Homes are discounted market 

sale units which: 

 a) must be discounted by a minimum of 30% against the market value; 

 b) are sold to a person or persons meeting the First Homes eligibility criteria (see 
below); 

 c) on their first sale, will have a restriction registered on the title at HM Land Registry 
to ensure this discount (as a percentage of current market value) and certain other 
restrictions are passed on at each subsequent title transfer; and, 

 d) after the discount has been applied, the first sale must be at a price no higher 
than £250,000 (or £420,000 in Greater London). 

First Homes are the government’s preferred discounted market tenure and should account 
for at least 25% of all affordable housing units delivered by developers through planning 
obligations. 

(PPG - Paragraph: 001 Reference ID: 70-001-20210524) 

 

Eligibility Criteria for buyers 

As explored in the PPG (Paragraph: 007 Reference ID: 70-007-20210524), all First Home 

buyers in England must fulfil several eligibility criteria.  

Page 13



 

These national criteria include the stipulation that Purchasers of First Homes, whether 

individuals, couples or group purchasers, should have a combined annual household income 

not exceeding £80,000 (or £90,000 in Greater London) in the tax year immediately 

preceding the year of purchase. 

As further stated in the PPG (Paragraph: 009 Reference ID: 70-009-20210524), local planning 

authorities are encouraged to ensure that First Homes work well in their area, which may 

include requiring a higher minimum discount, lower price or income caps, or local 

connection/key worker requirements. Local planning authorities are also encouraged to 

make the development requirements for First Homes clear for their area. 

 

Local eligibility criteria for Wokingham Borough 

Wokingham Borough Council has been considering the implications of the new policy and 

how First Homes will correspondingly work best in the borough. Consequently, the Council 

requires that eligible First Home buyers in Wokingham Borough should be key workers and 

have a connection to the local area. In the case where there are joint buyers of one First 

Home, only one of the buyers needs to meet the local eligibility criteria. These local 

requirements are clarified as follows: 

In the administration of First Homes, a key worker is defined as an employee who is deemed 

to provide an essential service to the local area and economy. For example, key workers 

include care staff, teachers, health authority staff, police officers, fire fighters and local 

authority social service employees. In accordance with government guidance as detailed 

above, an eligible buyer/buyers must have a combined annual household income not 

exceeding £80,000.  

In the administration of First Homes, a connection to the local area signifies someone who 

lives or works in Wokingham Borough. 

Local eligibility criteria will apply for a maximum of 3 months from when a home is first 

marketed, as detailed in the PPG (Paragraph: 008 Reference ID: 70-008-20210524). If a 

suitable buyer has not reserved a home after 3 months, the eligibility criteria will revert 

back to the national criteria (these are stated in the PPG Paragraph: 007 Reference ID: 70-

007-20210524).  

Local connection criteria should be disapplied for Armed Forces personnel where eligible 

(also detailed in the PPG Paragraph 008). 

Wokingham Borough Council is continuing to consider the implications of the new First 

Homes policy and how it will best work in Wokingham Borough. This may involve a higher 

minimum discount (which would be in addition to the aforementioned local eligibility 

criteria which this document introduces in line with Government guidance). Any such 

additional specifications will be evidence-based pertaining to the local area. 

 

Page 14



 

Developer contributions 

As referenced in the PPG (Paragraph: 012 Reference ID: 70-012-20210524), a minimum of 

25% of all affordable housing units secured through developer contributions should be First 

Homes. It is expected that First Homes (and the mechanism securing the discount in 

perpetuity) will be secured through section 106 planning obligations. 

The guidance then explores how the remaining 75% of affordable housing should be 

secured through developer contributions (Paragraph: 015 Reference ID: 70-015-20210524). 

Once a minimum of 25% of First Homes has been accounted for, social rent should be 

delivered in the same percentage as set out in Core Strategy Policy CP5. The remainder of 

the affordable housing tenures should be delivered in line with the proportions set out in 

Core Strategy Policy CP5. 

For example, if a local plan policy requires an affordable housing mix of 20% shared 

ownership units, 40% affordable rent units and 40% social rent units, a planning application 

compliant with national policy would deliver an affordable housing tenure mix of 25% First 

Homes and 40% social rent. The remainder (35%) would be split in line with the ratio set out 

in Core Strategy Policy CP5, which is 40% affordable rent to 20% shared ownership, or 2:1. 

35% split in this way results in 12% shared ownership; and 23% affordable rent. 

In the Wokingham Borough area, the provision of affordable housing is based upon a 70:30 

split between social rent and shared ownership as detailed in the Affordable Housing 

Viability Study (Core Strategy Policy CP5, 4.32). With the introduction of the First Homes 

Policy, although each site is assessed on a site by site basis, as a guide Wokingham Borough 

Council will continue to request 70% social rent, with 25% being First Homes and the 

remaining 5% Shared Ownership, etc. 

The Council will negotiate the tenure, size and type of affordable units on a site by site basis 

having regard to national policy requirements and housing needs, site specifics and other 

factors. 

 

Worked example 

Example of a scheme for 100 homes on a site that triggers a 40% contribution towards 

affordable housing (contributions as outlined in Section 5.2 of the WBC Affordable Housing 

Supplementary Planning Document): 

 

Steps Result 
 

Scheme for 100 dwellings on a site 
triggering a 40% affordable housing 

contribution 

100 homes to deliver overall 

Page 15

file:///C:/Users/FraRow/Downloads/Final%20adopted%20Core%20Strategy%20inc.%20cover%20(1).pdf
file:///C:/Users/FraRow/Downloads/Adopted%20Affordable%20Housing%20SPD%20July%202013.pdf
file:///C:/Users/FraRow/Downloads/Adopted%20Affordable%20Housing%20SPD%20July%202013.pdf


 

 

40% contribution towards affordable 
housing 

 

40% of 100 = 40 affordable homes 

Affordable tenure mix: 
25% First Homes 
70% Social Rent 

5% Shared Ownership 
 

 
25% of 40 = 10 First Homes 
70% of 40 = 28 Social Rent 

5% of 40 = 2 Shared Ownership 

Resultant number of dwellings for 
affordable home ownership  

 

10 First Homes + 2 Shared Ownership = 12 

NPPF requirement of 10% of homes for 
affordable home ownership 

 

10% of 100 = 10 homes  

Conclusion 
 

The NPPF requirement of 10 affordable 
homes for ownership is met because there 

will be 12  
 

 

Paragraph 65 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) stipulates that where major 

development involving the provision of housing is proposed, at least 10% of the total 

number of homes should be available for affordable home ownership.  

As detailed in the PPG (Paragraph: 023 Reference ID: 70-023-20210524), if a planning 

application for a major housing site in which 25% of the affordable homes are First Homes 

does not deliver enough First Homes to meet the 10% affordable home ownership 

expectation in the NPPF, additional affordable home ownership homes may be provided on 

top of the First Homes provision, in order to meet this expectation.  

 

Exception Sites 

The Written Ministerial Statement (WMS) and Planning Practice Guide introduce a First 

Homes Exception Sites policy in place of the national Entry-Level Exception Sites policy. For 

more information on First Homes Exception Sites, please see the WMS and PPG (Paragraph: 

024 Reference ID: 70-024-20210524 to Paragraph: 029 Reference ID: 70-029-20210524). 

 

Exemptions from the First Homes requirement 

The Government’s consultation response issued on 1st April 2021, relating to First Homes as 

part of proposed planning changes, explains that currently, paragraph 65 of the National 

Page 16

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/changes-to-the-current-planning-system/outcome/government-response-to-the-first-homes-proposals-in-changes-to-the-current-planning-system


 

Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) exempts developments from the requirement to deliver 

10% of all units as affordable home ownership tenures which: 

 Provide solely for Build to Rent homes 

 Provide specialist accommodation for a group of people with specific needs (such as 
purpose-built accommodation for the elderly or students) 

 Are proposed to be developed by people who wish to build or commission their own 
homes; or 

 Is exclusively for affordable housing, an entry-level exception site or a rural 
exception site 

The consultation response document then explains the Government’s belief that First 
Homes “will also not be appropriate in such developments and risk threatening the viability 
of these developments”, and its resulting intention “to exempt developments which meet 
these criteria from the requirement to deliver First Homes”. It goes on to clarify that “we 
will ensure that all current specified exemptions from the requirement to deliver affordable 
home ownership will also apply to the First Homes requirement”. (All quotations in this 
paragraph are found under the third heading (“Exemptions from the First Homes 
requirement”) of the final section (“Responses to consultation questions”) of the 
Government’s consultation response.) 

It can be concluded that, at the time of publication, the Government intended that schemes 
already established within planning policy as exempt from affordable home ownership 
requirements would equally be exempt from First Homes requirements.  

As a result of this, Wokingham Borough Council’s intention is that developments which fall 
into one of these four categories above will be exempt from the First Homes requirement. 
This position is subject to further guidance from the Government. 

 

This statement will be updated when further guidance is published. 

Page 17

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/changes-to-the-current-planning-system/outcome/government-response-to-the-first-homes-proposals-in-changes-to-the-current-planning-system


This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) form: the initial impact assessment  

1. Process and guidance  
 

The purpose of an EqIA is to make sure that the council is meeting the needs of all our residents by ensuring we consider 
how different groups of people may be affected by or experience a proposal in different ways.   
 

The council has a two stage EqIA process:  

 Stage 1 - the initial impact assessment  

 Stage 2 - the full impact assessment.  
 
This form is for use at Stage 1 of the process. This must be completed when undertaking a project, policy change, or 
service change. It can form part of a business case for change and must be completed and attached to a Project Initiation 
Document.  The findings of the initial impact assessment will determine whether a full impact assessment is needed.   
 
Guidance and tools for council officers can be accessed on the council’s Tackling Inequality Together intranet pages.  
  

Date started: 10/01/2022 

Completed by: Francesca Rowson 

Service:  Place Commissioning 

Project or policy EqIA relates to: IMD on First Homes Interim Policy Statement 

Date EqIA discussed at service team meeting: 17/01/2022 

Conclusion (is a full assessment needed?): No full EqIA needed 

Signed off by (AD): Rhian Hayes 

Sign off date: 28/01/2022 

P
age 19



 

2 

2. Summary of the policy, project, or service  
 

This section should be used to summarise the project, policy, or service change (the proposal).   
 

What is the purpose of the proposal, what are the aims and expected outcomes, and how does it relate to service plans 
and the corporate plan? 

The purpose of the IMD is to obtain approval to publish a First Homes interim policy statement on the Wokingham Borough Council’s website. 
The aim of this statement is to outline the Council’s position on First Homes and introduce local eligibility criteria for the Wokingham Borough 
area, in line with Government recommendations. This First Homes policy change is nationwide and guidance was published by the 
Government on 24th May 2021. This guidance includes the recommendation that local planning authorities should introduce local 
requirements so that First Homes operates effectively in their local area, and that authorities should make their position on First Homes clear 
e.g. through publishing an interim statement. Therefore, the proposed publication of the interim statement is directly in line with Government 
policy and the outcome would be to make First Homes requirements clear in Wokingham for developers, housing associations etc. It would 
also ensure that First Homes works as well as possible for the local population by introducing a key worker and local connection criteria as local 
eligibility requirements. 
 
 

How will the proposal be delivered, what governance arrangements are in place and who are the key internal 
stakeholders?  

If the IMD results in agreement of the interim statement, it will then be published on the Wokingham Borough Council website. It will provide 
guidance regarding First Homes in Wokingham Borough to anyone who is interested/to whom it is relevant. The policy itself being 
implemented is not an internal Wokingham Borough Council policy but rather a national policy change which all local planning authorities will 
need to take into consideration going forwards, and which Wokingham Borough Council itself is reacting to in accordance with Government 
guidance. When First Homes application forms start to come in from developers, the Council will check that the buyers being put forward are 
eligible to purchase a First Home in line with both national and local eligibility requirements, as outlined in the proposed interim statement.   
 
 

P
age 20



 

3 

Who will be affected by the proposal? Think about who it is aimed at and who will deliver it.   

Publication of the proposed interim statement would benefit developers, housing associations and other bodies concerned with housing and 
developments in the Wokingham Borough area, because it would make clear the implications of the new national First Homes policy for the 
local area and new development sites within it. Developers and housing associations etc. will all be impacted by the national policy change, 
and so this clarification of the impact for Wokingham Borough through the interim statement is both important and recommended by the 
government guidance.  
 
Within the statement itself, the stipulation of key worker and local connection criteria as local eligibility requirements would enable the initial 
prioritisation for First Homes of those in key worker professions who provide an essential service to the local area and economy and who live 
or work in the borough. The interim statement proposes to use the same definitions of local connection and key worker for First Homes 
administration as used elsewhere by Wokingham Borough Council, which would enable greater efficiency of processing applications by the 
Council and ensure consistency with other S106 agreements used.  
 

3. Data & Protected Characteristics 

 
This section should be used to set out what data you have gathered to support the initial impact assessment.  
 
The table below sets out the equality groups that need to be considered in the impact assessment. These comprise the 
nine protected characteristics set out in the Equality Act 2010 and other priority areas defined by the council.   
 

Age Disability Gender reassignment  Marriage and Civil 
Partnership 

Pregnancy/Maternity 

Religious belief Race Sex Sexual Orientation Socio-economic 
disadvantage  

 

P
age 21



 

4 

What data and information will be used to help assess the impact of the proposal on different groups of people? A list 
of useful resources is available for officers on the Council’s Tackling Inequality Together intranet pages.  

This IMD concerns the publication of a statement clarifying implications for Wokingham Borough of a national policy change. The change itself 
is required by the Government and applies to all local planning authorities. Therefore, the decision does not concern whether or not the policy 
change takes place – this has already been decided by the Government, and MHCLG (now DLUHC) published an Equality Impact Assessment on 
the equality implications of the introduction of the new First Homes policy in September 2020.  
 
Therefore, the only decision which Wokingham Borough Council would be introducing with the publication of this interim policy statement 
would be the stipulation of local eligibility requirements for First Homes, as mentioned in the question above. The introduction of local 
connection and key worker criteria locally is directly in line with Government recommendations.  
 
In terms of the potential impact on different groups of people, it is not thought that Wokingham Borough Council’s specific local eligibility 
criteria would result in a disproportionate impact on any particular group of people with protected characteristics, as far as this is possible to 
pre-empt. This is because the group of people who qualify as key workers (and who will therefore be prioritised for the first 3 months) is likely 
to be broadly representative of the wider population of the borough. Any more detailed analysis of this fact would be very difficult to establish 
due to the fact that there is no precise data available on the numbers of people with protected characteristics among key workers compared 
with everyone else. This is due to the nature and breadth of this eligibility criterion. However, it is very unlikely that Wokingham’s local criteria 
would disproportionately impact any one particular group. Furthermore, the local connection criterion being “someone who lives or works in 
Wokingham Borough” ensures that there will be no discrimination on the grounds of nationality or national origins, as it entails no stipulation 
of residence in Wokingham for a specific number of years prior to the time of interest in purchasing a First Home.  
 
Additionally, the initial prioritisation of key workers for purchasing First Homes would have benefits in other regards, due to their providing an 
essential service to the local area and economy. 
 
Lastly, due regard has been given to ensuring accessibility in the communication of the new First Homes requirements and locally set eligibility 
criteria. The interim statement which is proposed for publication on the Council’s website has been checked and updated to ensure that it is in 
an accessible format for readers with disabilities, including using clear and accessible headings throughout the document and adding 
alternative text under the image on the first page. 
 

P
age 22



 

5 

4. Assessing & Scoring Impact 
 

This section should be used to assess the likely impact on each equality group, consider how significant any impacts could 
be and explain how the data gathered supports the conclusions made.  
 

Scoring impact for equality groups 

Positive impact The proposal promotes equality of opportunity by meeting needs or addressing existing barriers 
to participation and/or promotes good community relations 

Neutral or no impact The proposal has no impact or no disproportionate impact. 

Low negative The proposal is likely to negatively impact a small number of people, be of short duration and can 
easily be resolved.  

High negative The proposal is likely to have a significant negative impact on many people or a severe impact on 
a smaller number of people.  

 
Referring to the Scoring table above, please give an impact score for each group, explain what the likely impact will be, 
and briefly set out how the data supports this conclusion.   
 

Equality group  Impact score Impact and supporting data  

Age Neutral or no impact As explained above. 

Disability Neutral or no impact As explained above. 

Gender reassignment  Neutral or no impact As explained above. 

Marriage and Civil Partnership  Neutral or no impact As explained above. 

Pregnancy/Maternity Neutral or no impact As explained above. 

Religious belief Neutral or no impact As explained above. 

P
age 23



 

6 

Race Neutral or no impact As explained above. 

Sex Neutral or no impact As explained above. 

Sexual Orientation Neutral or no impact As explained above. 

Socio-economic disadvantage  Neutral or no impact As explained above. 

 

5. Conclusion and next steps.  
 

Based on your findings from your initial impact assessment, you must complete a full impact assessment if you have 
identified any groups as having a low or high negative impact.  
 
If no impact, or a positive impact has been identified, you do not need to complete a full assessment. However, you must 
include reference to the initial assessment in any associated reports, and it must receive formal approval from the 
Assistant Director responsible for the project, policy, or service change.  
 

P
age 24


	Agenda
	IMD1 Decision on publication of an interim First Homes Position Statement
	Enc. 1 for Decision on publication of an interim First Homes Position Statement
	Enc. 2 for Decision on publication of an interim First Homes Position Statement


